
TOWN OF NEW GLARUS 

P.O. Box 448 ~ 26 5th Avenue ~ New Glarus, WI  53574-0448 ~ Phone 608/527-2390 
www.townofnewglarus.com 

 

ANNUAL MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, APRIL17, 2024, 6:00 PM 

AGENDA 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Meeting of the Town of New Glarus residents, County of Green, 
will be held at 26 5th Avenue, New Glarus, WI on Wednesday, April 17, 2024 at 6:00 PM. 
 
AGENDA 
1. Call to Order 
2. Proof of Posting 
3. Present 2023 Annual Meeting Minutes - Presented for informational purposes: minutes were approved at the 

May 10, 2023 Town Board Meeting 
4. Financial Report Presentation 
5. Introduce Town Board Supervisors Elected on April 2, 2024 (Oath Administered Before this Date by 

Statute) and Newly Appointed/Reappointed Commission Member(s) 
6. Updates Regarding W6599 CTH 39 Property 

a) Sale of buildings and 11.5 acres of land 
b) Knowles-Nelson Stewardship Grant application results 
c) Update on Master Park Plan and trail to Durst Road 
d) Site preparations for future Town garage 

7. Old Business 
8. New Business 
9. Adjourn  

  

Note:   Members of the Town Board may engage in discussion and information sharing in their capacity as Town 
Board members at the Annual Meeting, but no action of the Town Board will be taken.  A quorum of the Town 
Parks Commission and/or Town Plan Commission may be present. 

  
POSTED: 4/03/2024  New Glarus Town Hall    
Published: 4/11/2024  New Glarus Garage     Chris Narveson, Chair 
    New Glarus Post Office    New Glarus Town Board 

    https://townofnewglarus.com/         
          John Wright 
          Clerk-Treasurer 

 
Persons requiring additional services to participate in a public meeting may contact the Town Clerk for 
assistance at 527-2390.  

http://www.townofnewglarus.com/
https://townofnewglarus.com/


Town of New Glarus 
ANNUAL TOWN MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 19, 2023 

MINUTES 
 
Qualified Town Residents Attending:  Chris Narveson (Chair), Mona Sue French, Harry Pulliam, Sally and Dave Lamp, 

Alice Bertelrud, Diana Meyers (departed at 7:24 PM), Tracey Schwalbe, Dan Gartzke, Len and Mary Ellen 
Rauch (departed at 7:24 PM), Christine and Reg Reis, Mark Pernitz, Carol Holmes, Mary Anne Oemichen, and 
Matt Streiff (departed at 7:24 PM) 

Non-Residents Attending:  John Wright: Town Clerk-Treasurer, Tara Bast (departed at 7:15 PM): Audit Partner with Johnson 
Block, Attorney Robert Duxstad, and Melissa Hunt with Vierbicher 

1. Call to Order – Chair Narveson called the meeting to order at 6:01 PM. 

2. Proof of Posting – Clerk-Treasurer Wright attested to the proper proof of posting (April 7, 2023) and publication (April 
13, 2023). 

3. Present 2022 Annual Meeting Minutes – Chair Narveson noted that the minutes from the April 20, 2022 meeting were 
approved by the Town Board at their May 11, 2022 meeting.  No one in attendance had any objection to the minutes, as 
presented. 

4. Financial Report Presentation – Tara Bast reported that because the clerk and treasurer positions are combined for the 
Town of New Glarus, an annual financial audit is required.  Bast introduced the Town of New Glarus Financial 
Statement Overview for 2022.  She reviewed the statement of financial condition, also known as the balance sheet.  None 
of the ARPA funds have been applied, so they continue to be shown as a grant advance which is a deferred inflow.  The 
current unassigned fund balance is $143,979 which is 12% of the 2023 budget and is lower than the 15-25% range that is 
recommended.  Bast noted that the purchase of the State Highway 39 property has increased the 2022 budget beyond 
what was planned.  However, the Town has used only 26% of its borrowing capacity.  There followed a review of trends 
of general fund expenditures and revenues over a five year period.  Chair Narveson reported that future capital costs have 
are in the 2023 budget including the Town’s share of a new fire apparatus and a Town plow truck replacement.  He noted 
the current trend in paving costs which are an increase of between 15% and 20% compared with 2022; subsequently, the 
Town will focus on road maintenance rather than reconstruction.  ARPA funds will be used to pay interest on the loan 
used to secure the State Highway 39 property.  Most of the debt prior to that borrowing will be paid in full at the end of 
2025.  No questions about Town finances were posed by the public present.  

5. Introduce Town Board Supervisors Elected on April 4, 2023 – Chair Narveson announced that he and Matt Streiff 
had been re-elected to the Town Board for another 2-year term.  Troy Pauli was re-elected as 2nd Supervisor of the Town 
Board but was not able to attend this evening.   The Clerk-Treasurer is required by State Statute to administer the oath of 
office to those elected within five days of their notification of election, a process that has been completed earlier this 
month. 

6. Consider Replacing the Caucus System to Determine Candidates for Town Board with Nomination Papers Filed 
with the Town Clerk – Chair Narveson noted that the current process takes place on an annual basis in January each 
year at a meeting duly noticed and published in November of the preceding year.  Typically, few people attend, although 
fifty-four attended this year.  During the caucus process, if there are more than two candidates for a given Board 
position, those with the most votes at the caucus will appear on the Spring Election ballot.  If there is a tie, then the 
number must be reduced to two by voting again and/or determined by a coin toss or some other random method.  The 
paper nomination process allows for a greater number of individuals to potentially be considered for future Board 
positions.  If there are more than two candidates for a given office, the number can be reduced to two by including all 
candidates on the Spring Primary ballot.  Clerk-Treasurer Wright referred to the handouts he prepared for the meeting to 
explain the two processes and the proposed nomination process.  For the paper nomination process, the candidate or an 
assigned agent can secure nomination signatures for the candidate.  A minimum of 20 signatures, that can be vetted by 
the Clerk-Treasurer, are required to secure a place on the Spring Primary ballot. 

A motion to amend the Town caucus process to a paper nomination process was made by Carol Holmes, W4988 Airport 
Road; seconded by Reg Reis, W6498 State Highway 39.  Motion carried by voice acclamation; there were no votes 
against. 

7. Updates Regarding W6599 STH 39 Property 
a) Marketing of buildings and 10.3 acres of land for sale – Chair Narveson noted that although being marketed for sale 

(Fist Weber and Century 21) with an asking price of $649,000, the farmette has a tenant whose lease extends until 
June 30, 2023.   



 
b) Planned submission of Knowles-Nelson Stewardship Grant – The qualified appraisal was conducted on March 8, 

2023 for the 60.36 acres of undeveloped land to be set aside by the Town for passive recreation.   The estimated 
market value is $543,240.   50% of this valuation and costs associated with acquiring the property can be submitted 
to the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources on or before May 1, 2023 for potential reimbursement through 
the Knowles-Nelson Stewardship Grant program.  Chair Narveson introduced Melissa Hunt, Municipal Services 
Project Manager with Vierbicher.  Ms. Hunt noted that this grant opportunity ends within one year of property 
acquisition.  It is possible to pursue, through the same granting mechanism, development funds to offset other 
qualifying costs such as establishing parking areas, community garden preparation, ADA-compliant access, etc.  
Many steps, including the aforementioned appraisal, have been completed (including the amendment of the Town of 
New Glarus Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan to encompass this resource, a boundary survey of the 
property, a Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment, etc.) in preparation for the grant submission.  There followed a 
brief discussion regarding what is and is not allowed within passive recreational areas if the stewardship grant is 
approved.  There were concerns voiced about how a potential future access from Legler Valley Road may negatively 
affect traffic volume on this road, potential loitering in the future parking areas, conflicts between those hiking 
future trails and those hunting and trapping on the property.   

Using a large, printed map, Chair Narveson pointed out the existing point of access along State Highway 39, the 
probable location of parking, and the proposed location for a new public works facility.  An entrance point from 
Legler Valley, although desirable in order to provide more direct access to the Legler School Branch of the Little 
Sugar River, would have to overcome challenging topography and require land or easement acquisition.  This is a 
long-term goal.  Town of New Glarus Parks Commission Chair Harry Pulliam introduced other long-term plans that 
include a loop walking trail toward the north end of the property that eventually may be extended further south into 
the wooded areas.  If the stewardship grant is not approved, the Town Board may need to consider selling the 
remaining residential development rights to offset acquisition costs.  The current access from Highway 39 will need 
to be improved before the public can access the property safely.  It was also noted that the Town has leased the land 
outside of the farmette for farming, so any visitors in the near future will need to take care not to damage those 
plantings.  Tracey Schwalbe, W6691 Legler Valley Road, asked if the grant application includes a forecast to 
estimate the number of annual visitors to the property when public access is allowed.  Melissa Hunt stated it was not 
a requirement for the grant application and there is no basis upon which to base an estimate.  It would be possible to 
use camera technology or traffic counters to track those numbers in the future.   

8. Old Business – No old business was introduced or discussed. 

9. New Business – Three residents from Ashley Lane were present (Len and Mary Ellen Rauch and Diana Myers) to 
express their concerns with the condition of the paving on this Town road, particularly at the intersection with Legler 
Valley Road.  Chair Narveson hopes to chip seal the road with a polymer additive around July of 2023.   

Attorney Robert Duxstad was in attendance with his client Alice Bertelrud of W5759 County Road NN.  The residence is 
served by a Town road, Kempfer Lane, which is gravel with a short section that has been paved.  Duxstad stated that the 
plowing of snow on Kempfer Lane should not be discriminatory based upon the road type or number of residences that it 
serves.  Chair Narveson noted that the gravel portion cannot be salted without negatively affecting the solidity of the 
base.  Narveson further noted that he hopes to move towards a brine solution sprayed on area roads to reduce salt usage 
and the corrosive and other ill effects associated with coarse road salt.  Narveson hopes to add more gravel to this road, 
crown, and then double chip seal.   

Carol Holmes, W4988 Airport Road, stated that she exercised her right to plat her property along Airport Road to define 
the six 2-acre cluster lot residential development potential.  She felt the process was more grueling than she had 
anticipated.  She recommended that the Town Board or Plan Commission appoint an ad hoc subcommittee to create land 
development orientation materials for future applicants.  She expressed her opinion that Town residents should be made 
to feel like a partner in the development process.   

10. Adjourn – Motion to adjourn made by Mark Pernitz, N7827 Valley View Road; second by Tracie Schwalbe, W6691 
Legler Valley Road.  Meeting adjourned at 7:28 PM.   

_____________________________________ 

Approved:        John Wright, Clerk-Treasurer 

john
Pencil



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TOWN OF NEW GLARUS 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT OVERVIEW 
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

9701 Brader Way, Suite 202  
Middleton, Wisconsin 

(608) 274-2002 



 

1 
 

 
Town Annual Meeting Requirements 

 
 Annual Financial Statements – required per Section 60.41 of State Statutes.   

o Statement of financial condition (Balance Sheet) 
o Previous year’s revenues and expenditures (Statement of Revenues and 

Expenditures) 
o Current Indebtedness of the Town (Included in Audit Report and this Summary) 

 
 
 

2023 AUDIT OVERVIEW 
 

Content of Audit Report 
 

 Independent Auditor’s Report – Our Report is Unmodified (Draft) 
 

 Government-Wide Financial Statements 
o Report Governmental Activities 
o Full-accrual basis of accounting 
o Governmental Fund Financial Statements identified below are converted  

 
 Fund Financial Statements  

o Contains financial statements of the General Fund 
 Measure resources available for current use 
 Major differences in accounting 

 Debt (Proceeds and Expenditures in governmental funds vs long 
term obligation) 

 Capital Assets (Long-term Asset vs. Expenditure)  
 

 Notes to the Financial statements 
o Contains Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
o Footnotes related to Significant Financial Statement Accounts (Cash, Capital 

Assets, Debt, Fund Balance) 
 

 Required Supplementary Information (RSI) and Supplementary Information (SI) 
o Budget to actual schedules 
o Wisconsin Retirement Systems schedules 
o Schedule of debt service payments 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page Intentionally Left Blank  



2023 2022

Cash 1,802,404$   1,425,515$   
Taxes Receivable 634,140        504,676        
Other Assets 111,345        104,385        

Total Assets 2,547,889$   2,034,576$   

Current Liabilities 54,754$        51,258$        
Grant Advance - ARPA 81,672          144,966        

Total Liabilities 136,426        196,224        

Tax Levy 1,034,979     998,652        
Total Deferred inflows 1,034,979     998,652        

Total Fund Balance 1,376,484     839,700        

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Fund Balance 2,547,889$   2,034,576$   

Nonspendable 109,848$      93,077$        
Restricted 39,899          147,138        
Committed 65,473          71,458          
Assigned 790,682        384,048        
Unassigned 370,582        143,979        

1,376,484$   839,700$      

Unassigned general fund balance 370,582$      143,979$      
Subsequent year general fund budget (original) 1,751,102$   1,199,826$   

Percent of unassigned fund balance to next year's budget - Total 21.16% 12.00%
Percent of unassigned fund balance to next year's budget - No Capital 26.66% 12.16%

2023 2023
Budget Actual

Revenues 1,781,594$   1,898,397$   
Expenditures 1,269,436     1,361,613     

Net change in fund balance 512,158$      536,784$      

Summarized Income Statement

General Fund

Assets

TOWN OF NEW GLARUS
2023 Financial Statement Highlights

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Fund Balance

Summary of General Fund Balance

2



Nonspendable
Prepaid Expenses 109,848$       

Total Nonspendable Fund Balance 109,848$       

Restricted
Impact Fees 39,899$         

Total Restricted Fund Balance 39,899$         

Committed 
Community Partnership Sinking Funds 7,357$           
Town Park/Trail Sinking Funds 58,116           

Total Committed Fund Balance 65,473$         

Assigned
Equipment Purchases 71,864$         
Library Capital 40,000           
Town Hall Painting and Upgrades 15,500           
Fire/EMS Future Capital 60,000           
Debt Service 150,000         
Public Works Building 425,000         
Park Improvements 25,000           
Subsequent Budget Use of Reserves 3,318             

Total Assigned Fund Balance 790,682$       

Unassigned Fund Balance 370,582$       

Total Fund Balance 1,376,484$   

TOWN OF NEW GLARUS
2023 Financial Statement Highlights

General Fund Budget to Actual Comparison

Detail of General Fund Balance

Budgeted Amounts

Actual 
Amounts, 
Budgetary 

Basis

Variance with 
Final Budget - 

Positive 
(Negative)

Original Final
REVENUES
Property Taxes 880,343$      880,343$      880,343$      -$                       
Other Taxes -                    -                    2,431            2,431                 
Intergovernmental 143,573        146,581        221,558        74,977               
License and Permits 34,938          37,718          43,998          6,280                 
Public Charges for Services 111,287        111,287        130,429        19,142               
Interest Income 3,000            35,350          48,079          12,729               
Miscellaneous Income -                    570,315        571,559        1,244                 

Total Revenues 1,173,141     1,781,594     1,898,397     116,803             

EXPENDITURES
Current:
  General Government 202,596        252,206        287,643        (35,437)              
  Public Safety 114,288        114,288        117,160        (2,872)                
  Public Works 452,571        472,571        453,928        18,643               
  Culture, Recreation and Education 15,000          15,000          38,220          (23,220)              
Capital Outlay 16,248          16,248          2,220            14,028               
Debt Service
  Principal Repayment 358,176        358,176        357,713        463                    
  Interest Expense 40,947          40,947          104,729        (63,782)              

Total Expenditures 1,199,826     1,269,436     1,361,613     (92,177)              
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures (26,685)         512,158        536,784        24,626               

Fund Balance - Beginning 839,700 839,700 839,700 -                         
Fund Balance - Ending 813,015$      1,351,858$   1,376,484$   24,626$             

3



2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
General Government 161,212$          186,263$          186,766$          247,286$          287,643$          
Public Safety 88,797              93,633              99,053              110,006            117,160            
Public Works 443,162            436,255            521,578            451,585            453,928            
Culture, Recreation and Education 81,732              4,789                27,197              4,005                38,220              
Capital Outlay 818,330            105,849            751,856            1,547,237         2,220                
Debt Service 337,000            365,186            355,815            375,000            462,442            

Totals 1,930,233$       1,191,975$       1,942,265$       2,735,119$       1,361,613$       

TOWN OF NEW GLARUS
General Fund Expenditures

Actual 2019-2023

 $-

 $100,000

 $200,000

 $300,000

 $400,000

 $500,000

 $600,000

 $700,000

 $800,000

 $900,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,100,000

 $1,200,000

 $1,300,000

 $1,400,000

 $1,500,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

General Government

Public Safety

Public Works

Culture, Recreation and Education

Capital Outlay

Debt Service

4



2022 General Fund

Total Expenditures: $2,735,119

TOWN OF NEW GLARUS

2023 General Fund

Total Expenditures: $1,361,613

General Government
9%

Public Safety
4%

Public Works
16%

Culture, Recreation and 
Education

0%

Capital Outlay
57%

Debt Service
14%

General Government
21%

Public Safety
9%

Public Works
33%

Culture, Recreation and 
Education

3%

Capital Outlay
0%

Debt Service
34%

5



2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Taxes 778,818$      818,078$      842,225$      852,309$      882,774$      
Intergovernmental 119,380        154,733        131,008        340,317        221,558        
Regulation and Compliance 56,153          44,124          34,774          52,112          43,998          
Public Charges for Services 115,105        122,918        124,891        108,805        130,429        
Miscellaneous 19,836          19,568          5,246            30,957          619,638        

Totals 1,089,292$   1,159,421$   1,138,144$   1,384,500$   1,898,397$   

TOWN OF NEW GLARUS
General Fund Revenues

Actual 2019-2023

 $-

 $100,000

 $200,000

 $300,000

 $400,000

 $500,000

 $600,000

 $700,000

 $800,000

 $900,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Taxes

Intergovernmental

Regulation and
Compliance

Public Charges for
Services

Miscellaneous

6



TOWN OF NEW GLARUS

2023 General Fund Revenues

Total Revenues: $1,384,500

2022 General Fund Revenues

Total Revenues: $1,898,397

Taxes
61%

Intergovernmental
25%

Regulation and 
Compliance

4%

Public Charges for 
Services

8%

Miscellaneous
2%

Taxes
46%

Intergovernmental
12%

Regulation and 
Compliance

2%

Public Charges for 
Services

7%

Miscellaneous
33%

7



2023 2022

2,913,054$       3,270,767$        
14,355,995$     12,881,410$      

20.29% 25.39%

Year Principal Interest Total
2024 365,023$             95,029$            460,052$           
2025 372,675               87,210              459,885             
2026 380,396               79,489              459,885             
2027 401,003               71,604              472,607             
2028 87,663                 61,826              149,489             

2029-2032 1,306,294            208,311            1,514,605          

Total 2,913,054$          603,469$          3,516,523$        

Next Year's Budget (Total Budget) 1,751,102$        

Analysis of ending fund balance compared to 2021 TOTAL BUDGET
Unassigned Fund Balance at December 31, 2023 370,582$           
Current unassigned fund balance as % of budget 21%

15% of 2024 budget would be 262,700             
Current excess of fund balance over 15% 107,882             

20% of 2024 budget would be 350,200             
Current excess of fund balance over 20% 20,382               

25% of 2024 budget would be 437,800             
Current shortfall of fund balance over 25% (67,218)              

TOWN OF NEW GLARUS
2023 Financial Statement Highlights (Continued)

DEBT ANALYSIS

Capacity Used

General Obligation Debt

FUND BALANCE ANALYSIS

Outstanding General Obligation 
(G.O.) Debt December 31

Total G.O. Debt Capacity December 31

Debt Principal and Interest Payments to Maturity

8



2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Debt Limit 8,961,120$          9,562,075$          10,817,605$        12,881,410$        14,355,995$        
Outstanding Debt 1,651,590            1,746,913            2,054,459            3,270,767            2,913,054            

Difference 7,309,530$          7,815,162$          8,763,146$          9,610,643$          11,442,941$        
% Available 81.57% 81.73% 81.01% 74.61% 79.71%

Equalized Value 179,222,400$      191,241,500$      216,352,100$      257,628,200$      287,119,900$      
Growth 12,019,100$        25,110,600$        41,276,100$        29,491,700$        
% Growth 6.71% 13.13% 19.08% 11.45%

TOWN OF NEW GLARUS

G. O. Debt vs. Capacity
Actual 2019-2023

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

$8,000,000

$9,000,000

$10,000,000

$11,000,000

$12,000,000

$13,000,000

$14,000,000

$15,000,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Debt Limit

Outstanding Debt

9



DRAFT



DRAFT



Opinions 

Basis for Opinion 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

DRAFT



Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

DRAFT



Required Supplementary Information 

Supplementary Information 

DRAFT



DRAFT



Statement 
of Net Position Statement of Activities

Statement of Net Position

Statement of Activities

Balance Sheet Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balance



Governmental funds

Fiduciary funds

DRAFT



not

DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



Special item

DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



controls not 
government's own-source revenues 

qualifying trust or not administrative involvement 
not government's delivery of goods or services or 

entities that are not part of the government's reporting entity.

DRAFT



DRAFT



Investments Authorized by Wisconsin Statutes 

DRAFT



DRAFT



Pensions

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

DRAFT



Government-Wide Statements 

Fund Financial Statements 

DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



Plan Description.

Vesting.



Benefits Provided.

Post-Retirement Adjustments.

Contributions.

DRAFT



Pension Liabilities (Assets), Pension Income, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

DRAFT



Actuarial Assumptions.  

DRAFT



Long-term Expected Return on Plan Assets.  

  

DRAFT



Single Discount Rate. 

Sensitivity of the Town of New Glarus’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the 
Discount Rate.  

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position.

DRAFT



Plan description. 

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position. 

Benefits provided. 

Contributions. 

DRAFT



OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related 
to OPEBs. 

DRAFT



DRAFT



Actuarial Assumptions

Long-term expected Return on Plan Assets. 

DRAFT



Single Discount rate. 

Sensitivity of the Town’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate 

DRAFT



DRAFT



Accounting 
Changes and Error Corrections
Compensated Absences

DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT





DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT


	Annual Meeting
	Wednesday, April17, 2024, 6:00 PM AGENDA
	AGENDA


